
MINUTES 

MONTANA SENATE 
55th LEGISLATURE - REGULAR SESSION 

COMMITTEE ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

Call to Order: By CHAIRMAN TOM BECK, on March 25, 1997, at 3:53 
p.m., in Room 405. 

ROLL CALL 

Members Present: 
Sen. Thomas A. II Tom" Beck, Chairman (R) 
Sen. Mike Sprague, Vice Chairman (R) 
Sen. Dorothy Eck (D) 
Sen. Sharon Estrada (R) 
Sen. Wm. E. "Bill" Glaser (R) 
Sen. Don Hargrove (R) 
Sen. John II J . D. II Lynch (D) 
Sen. Walter L. McNutt (R) 
Sen. Fred R. Van Valkenburg (D) 

Members Excused: None 

Members Absent: None 

Staff Present: Martha Colhoun, Legislative Services Division 
Jodi Jones, Committee Secretary 

Please Note: These are summary minutes. Testimony and 
discussion are paraphrased and condensed. 

Committee Business Summary: 
Hearing(s) & Date(s) Posted: HB 369, HB 408, HB 240, HB 508 

Posted: 3/12/97 
Executive Action: None 

HEARING ON HB 508 

Sponsor: REPRESENTATIVE CHARLES DEVANEY, HD 97, PLENTYWOOD 

Proponents: 

Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns 
Nathan Tubergen, City of Billings 
Tim Magee, City of Great Falls 

Opponents: None 

970325LG.SM1 



Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 2 of 11 

REPRESENTATIVE CHARLES DEVANEY, HD 97, Plentywood presented HB 
508. This bill simplifies, clarifies and eliminates redundancy in 
the detail of municipal book-keeping and budget rules built up 
over the decades in Title 7. The statute already requires the 
DeDartment of Commerce to prescribe uniform accounting systems 
and aUditing standards by rule for local government entities. 
This bill has no negative impacts and the alternative is to do 
nothing and continue to operate under state statutes. There are 
positive financial impacts, as local government entities will 
seek savings and there is no additional FTE's required. The bill 
and the rewrite of title 7, chapter 6, parts 41 and 42 was done 
by the finance officers from Billings, Bozeman, and Great Falls 
along with the Montana Clerks, Treasurers, and Finance Officers 
Association and the Local Government Center at MSU. 

Proponents' Testimony: 

Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns, spoke in favor of HB 
508. This bill, if adopted, will take 92 pages of budget law in 
Title 7 and reduce it to about seven pages of statute. The 92 
pages have been developed over a long period of time and it is 
layers of restriction, regulations, and limitation on local 
government. This law took 100 years to write and is very 
confusing, full of contradictions and conflicts that complicate 
the work of budget offices across the state to develop a 
municipal budget. These seven pages will be clear, direct, and an 
efficient way of adopting a municipal budget. There is nothing in 
the bill that removes public oversight and it still complies with 
regulations and requirements of the Department of Commerce. 

Nathan Turbergen, City of Billings, spoke in favor of HB 508. 
Committee members who worked on this piece of legislation have 
been working for two years. It brings the accounting and 
budgeting operations up to par with his organization and the 
national organization. 

Tim Magee, City of Great Falls, rose in support of HB 508. This 
bill came out of the Governor's task force on reviewing local 
government and this is why a committee was formed to work on this 
piece of legislation. There are a lot of contradictions in the 
current statutes. One example, under current law, is the language 
reads that budgets be by ordinance and the other statute says by 
resolution. Another place in the statutes calls for an annual 
report by May 10 and the year doesn't end until June 30. There 
are many contradictions and the intent is to make one clear path 
of how to do the job with proper oversight in the clean up 
process. 

Opponents' Testimony: None 

970325LG.SM1 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 3 of 11 

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: 

SENATOR MIKE SPRAGUE asked how many awards Nathan Tubergen had 
won for budget reporting. Mr. Tubergen said they had won 11 in a 
row for financial reporting and eight for budgeting through the 
national organization. 

SENATOR DOROTHY ECK said she could remember when the select new 
accounting gadget was paper-less accounting, does that mean we 
won't use thac anymore? Alec Hansen said this is correct that the 
paperwork system is gone. 

Closing by Sponsor: 

REP. DEVANEY said as a previous mayor and councilman in 
Plentywood, that by statute they are required to have a 
preliminary budget out by the first week in August. He said they 
don't even have the taxable valuation on their mill levy by this 
date. This bill will help straighten this matter out. 

HEARING ON HB 240 

Sponsor: REP. CHARLES DEVANEY, HD 97, Plentywood 

Proponents: 

George Metcalfe, Self 
Nathan Tubergen, City of Billings 
Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns. 

Opponents: None 

Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

REP. CHARLES DEVANEY, HD 97, Plentywood, presented HE 240. Fees 
are taxes that are levied by the state and local government 
bureaucracies, not by legislative action. The intent of this bill 
is tq control increases in these fees by imposing limit~ This is 
done by requiring that the balance on the special revenue fund 
not be more than two years of an annual operating budget. Special 
revenue budgets are approved by the governing bodies such as the 
city council, county commissions, and state agencies. These 
budgets do contain operating expenses, maintenance, and capital 
replacement funds. If the balance of the special revenue fund 
exceeds the statutory limit for 60 days then the governing body 
must within 120 days adopt a plan to reduce the fees until the 
fund is back in compliance. 

Proponents' Testimony: 

George Metcalfe, Self, spoke in favor of HE 240. He handed In 
testimony and suggested amendments (EXHIBIT 1). 

970325LG.SMI 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 4 of 11 

Nathan Tubergen, City of Billings, said they already have a cost 
allocation program in Billings. This is another piece of 
legislation that will give the cities and towns more guidance. 

Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns, said there was some 
amendments from the House put in this bill to make it a more 
workable standard. 

{Tape: 1; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 4:16 p.m.; Comments: .J 

Opponents' Testimony: None 

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: 

SENATOR VAN VALKENBURG asked REP. DEVANEY if he was familiar with 
the amendments being proposed by Mr. Metcalfe. REP. DEVANEY said 
no, but from his understanding, he is attempting to bring water 
and sewer districts into the bill and have some oversight on 
those districts. He said, currently, there isn't any oversight on 
a water and sewer district board. If water and sewer could come 
into this bill without changing the direction or intent, that 
would be fine. 

SENATOR DON HARGROVE asked about lots that have a $6800 impact 
fee and other lots that have no impact fees and why is this. Mr. 
Metcalfe said they would be exempted. The idea is to charge the 
new owners, but not the previous owners or owners who are already 
there. 

SENATOR ECK said impact fees have been raised and how would this 
bill effect that. Alec Hansen said there would be no effect on 
the impact fees as the bill is currently written. The impact fees 
are important and a wise way to conduct business of the city. The 
city has to plan because people can't afford to pay for a new 
sewage system. There will be a deficit created if they don't take 
care of this now and put some money away. 

SENATOR SHARON ESTRADA asked if it would be a good idea.to come 
back next session with these proposed amendments that were passed 
out today. Alec Hansen said there would have to be legal view of 
the amendments and water and sewer districts should also be 
informed of these amendments. 

Closing by Sponsor: 

REP. DEVANEY discussed the fiscal note. The reason for the bill 
is not to limit government or preclude them from financing, it is 
simply a tool to not overcharge the citizens of that community. 

HEARING ON HB 408 

Sponsor: REP. CLIFF TREXLER, HD 59, Corvallis 

970325LG.SM1 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 5 of 11 

Proponents: 

Anne Hedges, MT Environmental Information Center 
John Shontz, MT Assoc. of Realtor 

Opponents: None 

Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

REP. CLIFF TREXLER, HD 59, Corvallis, presented HB 408. This bill 
doesn't open any loopholes or change anything on sub-divisions. 
Some counties interpret the sub-division law as any division or 
pi~ce of land that gets smaller in one shape or form. This is not 
true. Some people may want to sell a small piece of land to the 
neighbor for agriculture use, this person does not have to go 
through sub-division review. However, some counties say that if a 
piece of property is reduced from 20 to 15 acres it has to go 
through the sub-division laws and be sent to the state for final 
review. This takes a lot of time and money to process this. He 
read the language that was added on page 2 lines 3-13. He said 
the main component of this bill is it does not have to be sent to 
the state. 

Proponents' Testimony: 

Anne Hedges, MT Environmental Information Center, said their main 
concern was a consumer protection issue and to make sure that if 
someone did sell property where a piece had previously been taken 
off, that there was enough remaining property for a replacement 
drain field. 

John Shontz, MT Assoc. of Realtors, rose in support of HB 408. 

Opponents' Testimony: None 

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: 

CHAIRMAN BECK asked if this solves the problem of someo~ who 
sells 29 acres of a 30 acre plot and leaves 1 acre for the 
original owner. In this instance the owner was required to come 
up with the well log and sewage permit and will this be taken 
care of under this bill. REP. TREXLER said yes it does. 

Closing by Sponsor: 

REP. TREXLER closed on HB 408. 

{Tape: 1; Side: B; Approx. Time Count: 4:38 p.m.; Comments: .J 

HEARING ON HB 369 

Sponsor: REP. MATT BRAINARD, HD 62, Missoula 

970325LG.SMl 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 6 of 11 

Proponents: 

REP. CAROLYN SQUIRES, HD 68, Missoula 
Mike Kadus, Mayor of Missoula 
Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns 
Russ Ritter, MT Rail Link 
Frank Crowley, Mountain Water Company 
Jay Sage, Self 
Larry Hoffland, Target Range Homes 
Joanna Glantz, Self 
Marla Spolish, Self 
Jim Hollandsworth, Self 
Arlene Harris, Self 
Bobbie Rossignol, Self 
Verna Lange, Self 
Wilma Sage, Self 
Cathy Schindler, Self 
Svea Sage, Self 
Joe Gasvoda, Self 
Sue Mathewson, Orchard Homes 
Dick Rossignol, Self 
James Glantz, Self 
Rosemary Aitkens, Self 

Opponents: 

Peter Nielsen, Missoula City County Health Dept. 

Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

REP. MATT BRAINARD, HD 62, Missoula, presented HB 369. This is a 
bill concerning annexation and the revision of city mayor duties. 
This bill satisfies and ends a problem in Western Montana where 
people feel left out in decisions about large annexations. This 
bill will provide a consistency in the state code. When one 
municipality is annexed by another that is contingent upon 
approval by a vote, this annexation should be extended to the 
rest_of the citizens of Montana. One of the amendments ~t in by 
the House allowed for a standard annexation of up to 300 parcels 
which results in a more normal type of annexation. Adjacent 
landowners to the city who want to come into the city are annexed 
with their compliance and there is no resistance to the 
annexation. This form of annexation allows for a petition and 
keeps that annexation in place so the majority of landowners who 
are under 300 parcels could petition against the annexation. When 
there is a large annexation that involves 3000 or 4000 people and 
a petition has to be sought it can be very difficult and a vote 
is more efficient. 

Proponents Testimony: 

REP. CAROLYN SQUIRES, HD 68, Missoula, spoke in favor of HB 369. 
She said her district was involved in a large annexation and they 
had the petitions and they were successful, but there was a lot 

970325LG.SM1 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 7 of 11 

of hostility over it. The people were able to repeal the 
annexation for a year but then it went into effect. 

Mike Kadus, Mayor of Missoula, spoke in favor of HB 369. He said 
originally this bill would have done a lot damage to municipal 
jurisdictions in Montana. He said REP. BRAINARD and he came to an 
agreement on this bill by giving up and adding some amendments. 
He said he agreed not to oppose the voting for larger annexations 
and in doing that, as a chief executive for a large Montana city, 
he is giving something up. He wants to bring peace to this issue. 
There has always been a problem with the cities and the 
unincorporated urban areas. He said there is one problem with 
this bill in that it repealed a number of mayoral authorities. 
The bill does repeal 7-4-4306 which provides the mayor with some 
territorial powers. This is used especially in the aquifer 
protection ordinance and the county commissioner support this 
mayoral powers. This part of the bill needs to be put back in and 
he handed out amendments (EXHIBIT 2) . 

Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns, said this bill will 
build communities and put the annexation fight behind us. 

Russ Ritter, MT Rail Link, rose in support of HB 369. He said 
lines 24-27, page 1, Burlington Northern is in support of this. 

Frank Crowley, Mountain Water Company, supported HB 369. He 
handed out testimony from Arvid Hiller (EXHIBIT 3). 

Jay Sage, Self, rose in support of HB 369 (EXHIBIT 4) . 

Larry Hoffland, Target Range Homes, said their organization is in 
favor of the bill, but not the amendments. He said Target Range 
is a rural setting, but the people that live there understand 
that the next parcel will be annexed in the city. 

Joanna Glantz, Self, said she started working with the City of 
Missoula on an annexation four years ago. While working on the 
comm~ttee, she found that they had a complete written p~n of the 
annexation for the city. When she requested a copy of this it was 
denied to her. She said at the meetings she attended, they never 
quite told the truth as they promised the community would have a 
say in what was done, but the community never did. The community 
finally did a petition that called for an opinion of the people 
and they held off the annexation for a year. She said their 
Constitutional right was never exercised to have a vote on this 
matter. She said when the city annexed, they also took in state 
land and they now have a lawsuit against the city for this 
illegal move. She said when people have work done on their homes 
that live 4.5 miles from the city, they are required to sign a 
form not to protest against annexation. The city does this and it 
is blackmail. 

970325LG.SM1 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 8 of 11 

Marla Spolish, Self, said she has five acres and she has seen 
Missoula fade away and it has not been to the people. This bill 
will help their community by giving the people more say. 

{Tape: 1; Side: B; Approx. Time Count: 5:00 p.m.; Comments: .J 

Jim Hollandsworth, Self supported HB 369 (EXHIBIT 5) . 

Arlene Harris, Self, said she was among some of the people who 
were annexed on Reserve Street in Missoula. She said she was also 
one of the people that carried the petition around to stop this 
annexation. She said it is wrong for us to live under a form of 
government that we didn't vote for. 

Bobby Rossignol, Self, supported HB 369 (EXHIBIT 6). 

Verna Lange, Self, read the Webster Dictionary definition of what 
government is. She said our founding fathers believed very 
strongly in the right to vote and they drafted a Constitution 
which preserved that right for all of us. If our local 
governments take these rights from us, you can believe they will 
find other areas of rights to take away. When the goals of our 
mayor and city council are directed toward the people then they 
will fight for them. She said we must retain a government that is 
of the people, by the people, and for the people. 

Wilma Sage, Self said she would like this bill to pass without 
the amendments. She said the mayor has enough to take care of 
without reaching outside the city. She said in regards of 
annexation, they need to have a voice that is heard. She said we 
as a nation have chosen a democratic form of government and a 
majority of the people still want that right. She said we want to 
have the right to vote and share in these decisions. 

Cathy Schindler, Self, said this bill will take the power away 
from the city and give it back to the people and give them a 
choice to vote for what they want in their government. She said 
she is not in favor of the amendment. 

Svea Sage, Self, said each member sitting on this committee was 
elected by one person, one vote process. She said if the members 
on this committee felt they were fairly elected then they will 
vote for this bill. The city limits keep moving closer and closer 
by annexation and this process needs to be voted upon. 

Joe Gasvoda, Self, said this bill will help the people and won't 
hurt the city. 

Sue Mathewson, Orchard Homes, said the right to vote on an 
annexation is very important. She said she is concerned about the 
proposal to take out the repealer on the health department. As it 
is now, the health department issue is a propaganda tool and it 
has lost its credibility. The counties are very able to address 
these health matters. 

970325LG.SMI 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 9 of 11 

Dick Rossignol, Self, spoke in favor of HB 369 (EXHIBIT 7) . 

James Glantz, Self, said this bill is for the whole state not 
just Missoula. He is against the amendments and would like the 
right to vote on such matters. 

Rosemary Aitkens, Self, said she is In favor of passage of HB 
369. 

Opponents' Testimony: 

Peter Nielsen, Missoula City County Health Dept., said they are 
concerned with the repealer in this bill. This is the section of 
state law that allows a city to extend its authority to enforce 
health and quarantine ordinances beyond the city limits. He said 
they have used this for garbage regulations and the aquifer 
protection ordinances. He said the county did not have the 
authority to adopt these regulations, so the city adopted them 
and they apply five miles beyond the city limits. He said even if 
the Health Board does have the authority to enact a regulation, 
they sometimes need the help of the city. 

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: 

SENATOR ESTRADA asked if the amendments were from the mayor. 
SENATOR VAN VALKENBURG replied yes. 

SENATOR ESTRADA asked REP. BRAINARD how he felt about the 
amendments on this bill. REP. BRAINARD said he did not resist 
these amendments. When the bill was drafted he was thinking about 
quarantine and health regulations. For example, the city has an 
ordinance of having no horses in- town and not within 5 miles. At 
the time, he was not aware of the aquifer protection and the 
power of that ordinance. At this time the amendment is 
appropriate. 

SENATOR ECK asked if a developer wanted to have an area annexed 
that_was more than 300 lots and there are no people the~ yet 
what happens in that case? REP. BRAINARD said if there was over 
300 parcels the residents of that area would vote. 

SENATOR ECK asked what if there are no residents. REP. BRAINARD 
said this is unlikely that 300 parcels would be annexed at one 
time. Those 300 parcels could be annexed at the same time and 
they could petition if they wanted. 

SENATOR ECK said this is a problem and maybe it should be 
referenced that at least 50 people live in the area. There are 
cases where there are large sub-divisions where the only resident 
is the original owner. REP. BRAINARD said a parcel could be any 
survey area and could be annexed into the city. This bill is 
trying to strike a balance of when there are large numbers of 
parcels owned by a large number of individuals and still not go 
to the expense of an election. 

970325LG.SMl 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 10 of 11 

SENATOR ECK said Bozeman has what is called the donut area that 
is within the jurisdiction of the city. In this particular case 
it was the neighbors who didn't want to see that land annexed. 
Are the duties in 7-4-306 related only to health. REP. BRAINARD 
said other extra territorial powers regarding building codes was 
dropped out of this bill. 

SENATOR HARGROVE asked about the elimination of the mayor's power 
on line 25, page 5, and is that much of a concern. REP. BRAINARD 
said it is one of the mayor's duties that is no longer exercised. 
He said this was appropriate in Butte in order to put down 
miner's strikes, but not appropriate today. He said on line 27 
rather than having the mayor callout the militia the Governor 
would do that. 

Closing by Sponsor: 

REP. BRAINARD said people want to have the right to vote on large 
annexations. Our state Constitution tells us the power comes from 
the people and this will put the power back into the democratic 
process. This bill will resolve conflicts of annexation. He 
handed in letters of support (EXHIBIT 8) . 

970325LG.SM1 



Adjournment: 5:30 p.m. 

TB/jj 

SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 25, 1997 

Page 11 of 11 

ADJOURNMENT 

7 Jol;tX' JONES, Secretary 

970325LG.SMI 




